
1 – Environment Committee (11.02.25) 
 

Minutes of Meeting of Environment Committee of Mid Ulster District Council 
held on Tuesday 11 February 2025 in Council Offices, Ballyronan Road, 
Magherafelt and by virtual means 
 
 
Members Present  Councillor McAleer, Chair  

 
Councillors J Burton, J Buchanan, Cahoon, Cuthbertson, 
Groogan, Martin*, Milne*, Mullin*, McElvogue, McGuigan, 
McNamee, Robinson, Varsani 

 
Officers in Mrs Campbell, Strategic Director of Environment (SD:  
Attendance Env) 

Mr Conlon, Head of Technical Services (HoTS) 

Mr McAdoo, Assistant Director of Environmental Services 

(AD: ES) 

Mr Scullion, Assistant Director of Property Services (AD: 

PS) 

Miss Thompson, Committee and Member Services 

Officer  

 

* Denotes members and members of the public present in remote attendance  
** Denotes Officers present by remote means 
*** Denotes others present by remote means 

The meeting commenced at 7.00 pm 
 
The Chair, Councillor McAleer welcomed everyone to the meeting and those 
watching the meeting through the Live Broadcast.  Councillor McAleer in introducing 
the meeting detailed the operational arrangements for transacting the business of 
the committee in the chamber and by virtual means, by referring to Annex A to this 
minute.   
 
 
E024/25 Notice of Recording 
 
Members noted that the meeting would be webcast for live and subsequent 
broadcast on the Council’s You Tube site. 
 
E025/25 Apologies 
 
Councillors Kelly and Johnston. 
 
The Chair, Councillor McAleer extended the condolences of the Committee to the 
Kelly family on the sad loss of Councillor Kelly’s son, Pádraig. 
 
 
 
 



2 – Environment Committee (11.02.25) 
 

E026/25 Declarations of Interest 
 
The Chair reminded Members of their responsibility with regard to declarations of 
interest. 
 
E027/25 Chair’s Business  
 
Councillor J Burton referred to the two outbreaks of Bird Flu within the District and 
stated it is a worrying time.  The Councillor stated there is a big investment in 
farming with many jobs created and on the line especially in the Dungannon area.  
Councillor J Burton stated that after the outbreak at Black Lough signage was put up 
by the Department to raise awareness and proposed that the Department also be 
asked to put up signage in other locations ie. Dungannon Park, Brantry Lough. 
 
The Strategic Director of Environment (SD: Env) stated she would refer the matter to 
the Parks Department. 
 
Councillor Varsani stated that after the outbreak in Dungannon, Council put 
information on their website on how to report dead birds and that Councillors could 
share this information in each of their areas.  The Councillor stated that anything else 
that can be done to raise awareness should be supported and seconded Councillor J 
Burton’s proposal. 
 
Councillor Robinson endorsed the comments of previous Members and stated it is a 
worrying time for the poultry industry and that anything Council can do to prevent the 
spread of Bird Flu should be done. 
 
Councillor J Burton stated that the message could also be put out on Council’s social 
media.  The Councillor felt this is a very important issue and millions of pounds of 
investment is on the line. 
 
Councillor McNamee referred to the outbreak in Magherafelt and asked if there was 
any update on the extent of the outbreak. 
 
The SD: Env stated she did not have any specific details on the Magherafelt 
outbreak but would seek further information and provide update to Members. 
 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council that DAERA be requested to put up 

signage in additional locations regarding raising awareness of Bird Flu 
and reporting of dead birds and that similar messaging be issued on 
Council website and Council social media. 

 
 
Matters for Decision 
 
E028/25 Bus Shelters Update 
 
The Head of Technical Services (HoTS) presented previously circulated report which 
provided update on current bus shelter status. 
 



3 – Environment Committee (11.02.25) 
 

Proposed by Councillor Cuthbertson  
Seconded by Councillor McNamee and  

 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council that –  

• Bus shelter application listed under 3.7 is recommended for 
approval to installation this month: 1NR 
• 2024-012 Coalisland Road, Dungannon (opposite Millview 
Manor). 

• Bus shelter application listed under 3.8 is recommended for 
rejection this month: 1NR 
• 2019-008 Derrychrin Road, Ballinderry. 

 
E029/25 Best Kept Awards 2025 
 
The Assistant Director of Environmental Services (AD: ES) presented previously 
circulated report which sought approval for participation in the NI Amenity Council 
Best Kept Awards for 2025.  Further to the report the AD: ES advised that it is 
unlikely that Stewartstown will take part in the competition this year. 
 
Councillor Cuthbertson referred to group in Ballynakelly who have been doing a lot of 
work over the last few years and asked what the smallest category is in the 
competition.  The Councillor stated that Ballynakelly is a small settlement with under 
300 houses and that he felt they deserve to be promoted if there was something for 
that category. 
 
Councillor Robinson proposed the recommendation and stated it is good of see local 
towns participating in the competition and felt that it is worthy of Council support. 
 
Councillor McNamee asked why Stewartstown would not be participating this year. 
 
Councillor McElvogue referred to Donaghmore and that the community group had 
approached him in relation to difficulty with getting a road kerbed.  The Councillor 
stated he had contacted DfI on the matter and they advised they would not be 
carrying out the works and asked if there is any assistance for the group to do the 
work themselves or for Council to push to get DfI to undertake the work. 
 
The AD: ES stated there is a small village category and would check on the 
threshold for the number of houses for this category.  The AD: ES stated that officers 
are in contact with a couple of other groups in relation to potential for future 
participation and would be happy to talk to representatives in Ballynakelly about that.  
In relation to Stewartstown, the AD: ES advised that there have been some changes 
in the community group and they don’t feel they have the capacity to enter the 
competition this year.  Regarding the kerbing in Donaghmore, the AD: ES stated this 
is a DfI issue but that officers could raise the matter with them. 
 
Councillor McNamee seconded Councillor Robinson’s proposal. 
 
 



4 – Environment Committee (11.02.25) 
 

Resolved That it be recommended to Council to approve participation in the 2025 
Best Kept Awards including payment of increased £3,000 annual 
affiliation fee to NI Amenity Council as outlined. 

 
E030/25 Street Naming Request 
 
The Assistant Director of Property Services (AD: PS) presented previously circulated 
report which considered request received for renaming a branch section of an 
existing Road and subsequently sought approval to undertake the survey of all 
applicable residents on the Road in question. 
 

Proposed by Councillor Mullin  
Seconded by Councillor McNamee and  

 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council to proceed with the Street 

Renaming Survey of the branch section of “Loughbracken Road”, 
Moymore, Pomeroy to all occupiers of each property as listed on the 
Electoral Register for this branch section, in accordance with the 
Policy for Street Naming and Numbering to rename the branch section 
to “Loughbracken Lane”, Moymore, Pomeroy. 

 
E031/25 Renaming Existing Streets Survey Results 
 
The Assistant Director of Property Services (AD: PS) presented previously circulated 
report which outlined the results of survey following a request for the Renaming of an 
existing street. 
 

Proposed by Councillor J Burton  
Seconded by Councillor Robinson and  

 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council to proceed with the Street 

Renaming of “Laural Drive”, Tully, Aughnacloy to “Laurel Drive”, 
Tully, Aughnacloy. 

 
 
Matters for Information  
 
E032/25 Environment Committee minutes of meeting held on 14 January 

2025 
 
Members noted minutes of Environment Committee held on 14 January 2025. 
 
Councillor J Burton thanked Development officers for coming back to him in relation 
the jetties at Dungannon Park and that he was happy to hear that a bid for finance is 
being made in order for the reconditioning of the jetties to take place.  The Councillor 
stated he hoped to see the work done before Spring if possible. 
 
 
 
 



5 – Environment Committee (11.02.25) 
 

E033/25 Waste Management Plan Addendum  
 
Members noted previously circulated report which outlined an addendum to the Joint 
Waste Management Plan. 
 
Councillor McGuigan stated this is a sizeable document and he was unsure whether 
everyone had their heads around the Waste Management Plan.  The Councillor 
asked if the document could be condensed of if an additional meeting could be 
organised to go through the Plan. 
 
The Assistant Director of Environmental Services (AD: ES) advised that the report 
details a technical addendum to keep Council right legislatively as there has been a 
delay in the Department issuing the new Strategy.  The AD: ES stated that 
consultation on the Strategy is to be issued in Spring and further to this there will be 
a new Waste Management Strategy.  In response to that a new Waste Management 
Plan will be needed and it is at that time there will be Member involvement and 
public consultation. 
 
Councillor Cuthbertson referred to the cost of producing the addendum as being over 
£4k.  The Councillor asked if this is a new cost or a cost that has been there all year. 
 
Councillor McGuigan stated it is important that in terms of the Council plan that 
Councillors have an input and are aware of the direction of travel as waste 
management and recycling is constantly changing. 
 
The AD: ES advised that the £4k was a one off additional cost which was paid earlier 
in the year. 
 
E034/25 New Year Refuse Collection  
 
Members noted presented previously circulated report which outlined the issues 
affecting refuse collection services over the New Year period. 
 
Councillor Cuthbertson stated that the report refers to bad weather and advised that 
on Saturday 4 January there was no bad weather in the Dungannon or Clogher 
Valley areas and asked what the issue was regarding bins that were missed in those 
areas on that day. 
 
Councillor Mullin referred back to agenda item 9 - Environment Committee minutes 
of meeting held on 14 January 2025 and thanked officers and the team for the quick 
response on getting the Cappagh Road cleaned for a funeral. 
 
The Assistant Director of Environmental Services (AD: ES) advised that crews who 
were out on Saturday 4 January reported bad road conditions in some parts of the 
District which hampered collections. 
 
E035/25 Building Control Workload 
 
Members noted previously circulated report which provided update on the workload 
analysis for Building Control. 



6 – Environment Committee (11.02.25) 
 

Councillor Varsani referred to recent serious house fire in Dungannon and asked if 
Council officers have a role to play in promoting escape plans from houses.  The 
Councillor also referred to older houses which don’t have escape windows and 
asked if there are grants which could be explored to assist in that work.  Councillor 
Varsani asked that a report be brought back to Committee in terms of the role 
Council and Council officers can play in promoting escape plans in homes and 
information on possible grants for homes without an escape window. 
 
Councillor Cuthbertson stated that Council has a Home Safety Officer who conducts 
home safety checks for those over 65 and families with children.  The Councillor felt 
that if it is not already included that fire safety could be highlighted within those home 
safety checks. 
 
Councillor Milne referred to the Affordable Warmth Scheme and that he hoped 
Housing Executive provided escape windows when they were replacing windows as 
part of that Scheme.  The Councillor asked that some information be brought back 
on what did happen in such cases. 
 
Councillor J Burton asked if there is much uptake on home safety checks in the 
District and suggested that awareness is communicated on Council website and 
social media. 
 
The Assistant Director of Property Services advised that a report will be brought 
back to Committee on the issues raised. 
 
E036/25 Entertainment Licensing Applications 
 
Members noted previously circulated report which provided update on Entertainment 
Licensing Applications across the Mid Ulster District. 
 
E037/25 Dual Language Signage Requests 
 
Members noted previously circulated report which advised of requests for Dual 
Language Signage from residents on the streets/roads in question. 
 
E038/25 Dual Language Signage Surveys  
 
Members noted previously circulated report which advised of the result of surveys 
undertaken on all applicable residents on the streets/roads in response to Dual 
Language Signage Nameplate requests. 
 
 
Live broadcast ended at 7.25 pm. 
 
 
Local Government (NI) Act 2014 - Confidential Business 
 

Proposed by Councillor McNamee 
Seconded by Councillor Varsani and  
 



7 – Environment Committee (11.02.25) 
 

Resolved In accordance with Section 42, Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local 
Government Act (NI) 2014 that Members of the public be asked to 
withdraw from the meeting whilst Members consider items E039/25 to  

 E048/25. 
 

 Matters for Decision 
E039/25 Extension to Biowaste Contract 
E040/25 Sustainable NI Support 2025/26 
E041/25 Tender report for the appointment of Vehicle Suppliers 
E042/25 On-street Residential Charge point Scheme (ORCS): 

Tender for the Supply, Installation, Operation and 
Maintenance of Electric Vehicle Charge points for the NI 
Electric Vehicle Consortium 

E043/25 Maghera Regeneration Programme Update 
 

Matters for Information  
E044/25  Environment Committee Confidential Minutes of meeting 

held on 14 January 2025 
E045/25  Capital Framework – ICT Contracts Update 
E046/25  Capital Framework – IST Contracts Update 
E047/25  Off Street Car Parking: Quarter 3 2024/2025 
E048/25  Capital Programme 2023-2027: Quarter 3 2024/25 

Update 
 
E049/25 Duration of Meeting 
 
The meeting was called for 7.00 pm and ended at 7.47 pm. 

 

 

CHAIR ________________________            

 

 

DATE _________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



8 – Environment Committee (11.02.25) 
 

Annex A – Introductory Remarks from the Chairperson 

 

Good evening and welcome to the Council’s [Policy & Resources/Environment/ 

Development] Committee in the Chamber, [Dungannon/Magherafelt] and virtually. 

 

I specifically welcome the public watching us through the Live Broadcast. The Live 

Broadcast will run for the period of our Open Business but will end just before we 

move into Confidential Business. I let you know before this happens.  

 

Just some housekeeping before we commence.  Can I remind you:- 

 

o If you have joined the meeting remotely please keep your audio on mute unless 

invited to speak and then turn it off when finished speaking 

 

o Keep your video on at all times, unless you have bandwidth or internet 

connection issues, where you are advised to try turning your video off 

 

o If you wish to speak please raise your hand in the meeting or on screen and keep 

raised until observed by an Officer or myself  

 

o Should we need to take a vote this evening I will ask each member to confirm 

whether they are for or against the proposal or abstaining  

 

o When invited to speak please introduce yourself by name to the meeting 

 

o For any member attending remotely, if you declare an interest in an item, please 

turn off your video and keep your audio on mute for the duration of the item 

 

o If referring to a specific report please reference the report, page or slide being 

referred to 

 

o Lastly, I remind the public and press that taking photographs of proceedings or 

using any means to enable anyone not present to see or hear proceedings, or 

making a simultaneous oral report of the proceedings are not permitted 

 

Thank you and we will now move to the first item on the agenda. 


